
                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING September 2, 2015   Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY SEPTEMBER 2, 2015 7:00 PM 
61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE, CALIFORNIA 92252 

AGENDA 
 

 

 1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

 4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

Pgs. 1-3 5. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine in nature and will be adopted in total 
by one action of the Board of Directors unless any Board Member or any individual or 
organization interested in one or more consent calendar items wishes to be heard.  

A. Approve Draft Minutes of the August 19, 2015 Regular Meeting of the 
Board of Directors 
 

Pgs. 4-20 
 
 
 
Pgs. 21-26 
 
 
Pgs. 27-29 

6. 
 
 
 

7. 
 
 

  8. 
 

4TH QUARTER ENDING 6/30/15 FINANCIAL REPORT 
Recommend that the Board review financial report, ask questions, and approve, as recommended by 
the Finance Committee. 
 
2015/2016 MID-BUDGET REVIEW (CAPITAL) 
Recommend that the Board approve amendments to the 15/16 Capital Budget. 
 
CAPACITY FEE REPORTS 
Recommend the Board receive this as information only. 
 

Pg. 30 
 
 
 
 
Pg. 31 

9. 
 
 
 
 

10. 

APPOINTMENT OF JBWD DIRECTORS TO ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER 
AGENCIES (ACWA) COMMITTEES 
Recommend that the Board consider appointment of Director Luckman to the ACWA Groundwater 
Committee and Director Fuller to the Local Government Committee. 
 
UPDATE ON CONSERVATION EFFORTS / SUPPLEMENTAL CHARGES 
Recommend that the Board receive information and provide direction on supplemental charges. 
 

  
 
 

 
 
 

PO Box 675 • 61750 Chollita Road • Joshua Tree CA  92252 
Phone (760) 366-8438 • Fax (760) 366-9528 • www.jbwd.com 

An Equal Opportunity Provider 

http://www.jbwd.com/


                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING September 2, 2015   Page 2 of 2 
 

11. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
12. 

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
A. PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE: Vice President Luckman and Director Unger: 

Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant to report. Next meeting is scheduled 
for October 7, 2015. 

B. FINANCE COMMITTEE: President Fuller and Director Johnson. Next meeting is  
      scheduled for September 28, 2015. 
C.   WATER RESOURCES & OPERATIONS COMMITTEE: Vice President Luckman and     
       Director Johnson.  Next Meeting is scheduled September 29, 2015. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
  

13. 
 
DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT  
 

 15. 
 

GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 

 16.  FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS AND TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES 
Mojave Water Agency BOD Meeting: September 10th 
ASBCSD Meeting September 28th  Mike Reynolds 

 
 17. INDIVIDUAL DIRECTOR REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED 

 
 18. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 
 19. ADJOURNMENT 
   
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
INFORMATION 
 
The public is invited to comment on any item on the agenda during discussion of that item. 
Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone Joshua Basin Water 
District at (760) 366-8438, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related modification or 
accommodation. 
 
Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public 
inspection in the District’s office located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California 92252 during normal business hours. 
 
This meeting is scheduled to be broadcast on Time Warner Cable Channel 10 on September 9 at 7:00 pm and September 16  at 7:00 pm . 
 



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
Minutes of the 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 

August 19, 2015 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:     7:00 PM 

 
 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 

  

3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: Victoria Fuller 
Bob Johnson 
Mickey Luckman 
Mike Reynolds 
Rebecca Unger 
 

Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 

STAFF PRESENT: Curt Sauer, General Manager 
Seth Zielke, Director of Water Resources and Operations 
Keith Faul, GIS Coordinator 
 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT: Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant 
 

GUESTS 2 
 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

     MSC Reynolds/Luckman, 5/0 to approve the agenda for the August 19, 2015 meeting with the following      
changes:   item #8 Meeting dates:  Finance Committee will meet on August 25, 2015, and Water Resources & 
Operations committee will next meet on September 22, 2015.  Also, add Item #8a Public Comment. 

 
  Fuller  Aye  
  Luckman Aye  
                          Johnson             Aye 
                          Reynolds           Aye 
  Unger   Aye 
                            
 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR 

MSC Johnson/Fuller, 5/0 to approve Draft Minutes of the August 5, 2015 Regular Meeting of the Board of 
Directors. 
 
             Fuller                Aye  
             Luckman           Aye  
                 Johnson             Aye 
                 Reynolds           Aye 
                 Unger                Aye 

         
6.    UPDATE ON CHROMIUM 6 EFFORTS  
       GM Sauer gave the report, and briefed the Board and public on report findings from BESST Technologies.   
Chromium 6 is present throughout the column in Well 14.  Results provided for hydroprofiling of wells.  Well 16 
appears to have Chromium 6 that exceeds the 10ppb level.  Chromium 6 appears to decrease to the south and west of 

Page 1 of 31



Wells 14 through 17.  JBWD will look at options of treatment versus drilling a well(s) in other areas with lower levels 
of Chromium 6.  The Board received the report for information only. 
 
Director Reynolds brought up discussion of potentially diluting the aquifer, suggesting we research amount of water 
needed to dilute the Chromium 6 to acceptable levels as another potential option. 
 
Public Comment:  
Tom Floen, Joshua Tree: Mr. Floen suggested the idea of, instead of diluting the entire aquifer, to dilute the water as it 
leaves the well. 
 
Director Reynolds also brought up the fact that the new regulation for the 10ppb Chromium level has been challenged 
and is in litigation, and suggested that the judgment from the litigation can change everything. 
 
7.    CONSERVATION UPDATE, REPORT ON THE SWRCB DIVISION OF ENFORCEMENT MEETING 
       Curt Sauer gave the report.  Meeting was on August 6th attended by GM Sauer, President Fuller and Vice President 
Luckman.  With the addition of July conservation level numbers, JBWD has a water use reduction of 27.6% for June 
and July.  The SWRCB staff at the meeting recommended that Tier 3 and Tier 4 users be encouraged towards higher 
conservation levels and suggested the Board implement a conservation surcharge.  DWR has information about a toilet 
rebate program at http://ca.gov/drought/ .   The Board received the report for information only. 
                           
 
8.   STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
A. LEGISLATIVE AND PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE:  Vice President Luckman and Director 

Unger:  Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant, gave the report. The Wild Crafting workshop: 
the second part of a two part workshop with JBWD, the Joshua Tree National Park, and Mojave Desert 
Land Trust on August 14th had 40 participants.  Fall Native Plant Sale will be November 14th at the 
Mojave Desert Land Trust.  Summer Splash will be held on August 22nd at the Joshua Tree Community 
Center.  Bookmarks with a water conservation message were distributed to the two elementary schools in 
Joshua Tree, table tents were distributed to Joshua Tree restaurants.  Online Water Education School is 
currently on hold.  Next meeting is scheduled for September 2, 2015. 

B. FINANCE COMMITTEE: President Fuller and Director Johnson: Items discussed at the last Finance 
Committee meeting were discussed at the current Board meeting. Next meeting is scheduled for August 
25, 2015. 

C. WATER RESOURCES & OPERATIONS COMMITTEE:  Vice President Luckman and Director 
Johnson: Next meeting is scheduled for September 22, 2015. 
 

8a.    PUBLIC COMMENT 
         None. 

 
9.      DISTRICT COUNSEL REPORT 
         None.  General Counsel is not present. 
                     
10.    GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
         General Manager Curt Sauer gave the report.  GM Sauer complimented staff regarding following safety protocols 
in the field.  Chromium 6 Compliance Plan is due to the SWRCB by September 30th.  JBWD is working with Mark 
Lundquist of the Municipal Advisory Committee and the Mojave Water Agency, and we will be doing a presentation 
on Chromium 6 on October 14th.  Seth Zielke, Director of Water Resources and Operations presented a report for July 
on completed and ongoing operations and infrastructure projects.  GM Sauer discussed the Capital Improvement 

Page 2 of 31

http://ca.gov/drought/


Program, groundwater recharge (receiving 684 acre feet beginning in September).  The Board received the report for 
information only. 
 
11. 
 
 
 
 
 
12. 
 
 
13. 
 
 
 
 
 
14. 

FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS AND TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES 
Directors Fuller, Luckman and Johnson will be attending the San Bernardino County 2015 Water Conference on 
August 21st. 
Director Luckman mentioned an upcoming professional development seminar on the Brown Act being held in 
September. 
 
INDIVIDUAL DIRECTOR REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED 
Director Unger reported on the Mojave Water Agency Board of Directors Meeting. 
 
DIRECTORS COMMENTS/FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Direction was given by the Board for GM Sauer to provide information on a potential conservation surcharge. 
Director Unger expressed concern over a regulation passed through the California legislature that provides the 
SWRCB the opportunity to mandate consolidations of water districts.  Information can be found in the ACWA 
newsletter.   
 
CLOSED SESSION – CONFERENCE WITH DISTRICT’S REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR 

          
15. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 

Closed Session Report By General Manager – At approximately 8:10 PM, the Board went into Closed 
Session pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 as reflected in item 14 of tonight’s agenda to 
consult with the District’s designated negotiator (Curt Sauer, General Manager) regarding the terms and 
conditions concerning the potential acquisition of the real property identified in the agenda.  The 
District’s General Counsel, Gil Granito participated telephonically in the closed session.  The closed 
session ended at approximately 8:25 PM and no further reportable action was taken. 

                         
16. ADJOURNMENT 

MSC Luckman/Unger, 5/0 to adjourn the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of August 19, 2015 
at 8:30 PM. 

 
                          Fuller  Aye  
  Luckman Aye  
                          Johnson             Aye 
                          Reynolds           Aye 
  Unger   Aye 
 
  

 
 
Respectfully submitted:  
 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Curt Sauer, General Manager and Board Secretary 

 

Page 3 of 31



Page 4 of 31



Page 5 of 31



Page 6 of 31



Page 7 of 31



Page 8 of 31



Page 9 of 31



Page 10 of 31



Page 11 of 31



Page 12 of 31



Page 13 of 31



Page 14 of 31



Page 15 of 31



Page 16 of 31



Page 17 of 31



Page 18 of 31



Page 19 of 31



Page 20 of 31



Page 21 of 31



Page 22 of 31



Page 23 of 31



Page 24 of 31



Page 25 of 31



Page 26 of 31



Page 27 of 31



Page 28 of 31



Page 29 of 31



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
MEETING AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors      September 2, 2014 
  
 
Report to: President and Members of the Board 
 
Prepared by: Curt Sauer (plagiarized from Susan’s 2013 report)     
 
TOPIC:   
APPOINTMENT OF JBWD DIRECTORS TO ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER 
AGENCIES (ACWA) COMMITTEES 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Recommend appointment of Director Luckman to the ACWA Groundwater Committee and Director 
Fuller to the Local Government Committee. 
 
 
ANALYSIS: 
It is time for appointments to the Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) committees.  
There are about a dozen various committees, with responsibilities such as energy, communications and 
finance.  The District is heavily invested in ACWA, with health benefits and property, liability and 
workers’ compensation insurance purchased through ACWA.  In addition, ACWA is a source of 
education, training and legislative advocacy for the District.  Having representation on appropriate 
ACWA committees would be a benefit to the District.   
 
Directors Luckman and Fuller were appointed to serve in September, 2013, and are asking for 
consideration to be reappointed onto their respective committees. The District needs the Board’s 
endorsement before they can submit their applications.  Director Luckman is seeking a seat on the 
Groundwater Committee.  Director Fuller is seeking appointment to the Local Government Committee.  
Descriptions of the responsibilities of those committees are attached.   
 
The District will be expected to pay for expenses associated with the committee attendance as well as 
Director compensation for each day’s service.  Each committee meets four times per year.  Two of 
those meetings are in conjunction with the ACWA conferences.  The other two meetings are held on 
other dates to be determined and would incur travel expense. 
  
The Board needs to approve the appointments of Directors Luckman and Fuller to the committees 
before their applications can be submitted to ACWA.  The applications are due by September 30 and 
the appointments are expected by December 31, 2014. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN ITEM:  
N/A 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Expenses, which would include director compensation, travel and meals are estimated at a total of 
$2,000 - $3,000 per year, depending upon the location of the travel.   
 

Page 30 of 31



 JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
MEETING AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors      September 2, 2015 
           
 
Report to: President and Members of the Board 
 
Prepared by: Curt Sauer (as of August 28)     
 
 
TOPIC: Update on Conservation efforts / Supplemental Charges 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Receive information and provide direction on supplemental charges. 
 
ANALYSIS: Our conservation numbers indicate a 27.6 percent cumulative conservation rate for June 
and July. I will update the Board for the June through August cumulative rate at the Board meeting, 
however as of August 27 it appears our reduction in production will be approximately 25 percent for 
the three months. 
 
Review of consumption numbers- Tier 4 Institutional and Tier 4 residential 
 
You will recall at the last Board meeting I mentioned SWRCB would be sending us a Conservation 
Order. On Thursday (27th) we found information on the SWRCB website which led us to request 
Division of Enforcement to not issue the Order. Decision pending, if they do, we will review at the 
Board meeting. 
 

(A) The first requirement of the Conservation order would be to “Determine, within the next thirty (30) 
days, the feasibility of implementing a “drought surcharge” on the existing rate structure, and if feasible, 
immediately implement it.  

Also at the last Board meeting the Directors all asked for a review of how we might implement such a 
drought surcharge. 

Therefore, we will present some options and issues to be considered by the Board. 
 

 
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN ITEM:  
 

FISCAL IMPACT:   
 

Page 31 of 31


	Conservation Update September 2 2015 edit.pdf
	JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT

	acwa committee recommendations.pdf
	JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT




